
Tuesday, 21 January 2020 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 30 January 2020, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 29 January 2020 - by notifying the Officer named on the report of 
the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  RELAXATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANT TO 31 CHERRY TREE 
AVENUE, ULVERSTON  

3 - 10 

 To consider the modification of a restrictive covenant so that land at 31 Cherry 
Tree Avenue, Ulverston can be developed for housing. 

 

2  APPLICATION TO RELAX RESTRICTIVE COVENANT - 24 HALL PARK, 
BURNESIDE  

11 - 18 

 To consider the modification of a restrictive covenant so that land at 24 Hall 
Park, Burneside can be developed for housing. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision:  

Thursday, 30 January 2020 

Application to modify a restrictive covenant on 
land at 31 Cherry Tree Avenue, Ulverston  

 

Portfolio:  Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Sion Thomas – Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial 
Service 

Ward: Ulverston East 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The modification of a restrictive covenant so that land at 31 Cherry Tree 
Avenue, Ulverston can be developed for housing. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the Director of Customer and Commercial 
Services:- 

2.1.1 Authorises the modification of a restrictive covenant thereby allowing a 
new property to be provided, on previously owned Council land at 31 
Cherry Tree Avenue, Ulverston and being made available at a permanent 
discount for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local connection’; and 

2.1.2 Authorise the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist to enter 
into the necessary legal agreements. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The owner (‘the applicant’) of a former council house at 31 Cherry Tree Avenue, 
Ulverston has requested the Council as former landowner to relax a restrictive 
covenant to permit the construction of a new 83.5m2 two storey, three 
bedroomed detached dwelling situated on part of the original garden of the 
former Council house.   

3.2 When the Council sold the house to the applicant the sale documentation 
contained conditions that only permit new building at the discretion of the 
Council and subject to appropriate conditions.  

3.3 The Council granted planning consent for the proposed dwelling in August 2018 
(planning reference: SL/2018/0421). 

3.4 Established Council policy in relation to previous requests of this nature is 
attached as Appendix 1.  In essence if asked for its consent to modify such 

Page 3

Item No.1



restrictive covenants the Council will seek to impose affordable housing 
conditions, as opposed to seeking a monetary sum, where appropriate.  This 
will result in new or existing properties being provided at a permanent discount 
for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local connection’, in addition to those already 
provided through the Development Control process. 

3.5 The applicant has provisionally agreed that in return for the Council’s consent 
as former landowner (covenant relaxation), the new dwelling  will be made 
available at a permanent discount (89.29% of market value) for ‘approved 
persons’ with a ‘local connection’, in accordance with the Council’s established 
‘Affordable Housing application process’. 

3.6 The applicant has agreed to meet the Council’s costs in documenting the 
relaxation of the covenant. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Deputy Leader and PH for Housing and Innovation has also been 
consulted and is in agreement with the proposals put forward. 

4.2 The Council’s Principal Specialist (People) supports the proposed decision that 
will enable a new property to be provided at a permanent discount for ‘approved 
persons’ with a ‘local connection’.  This is consistent with recent similar cases 
in the district. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 To lift the covenants unconditionally. This would not be in accordance with the 
statutory requirement to obtain best consideration in land transactions. 

5.2 To take cash instead of permanent price reductions. This would not achieve 
affordable housing.  In this instance the equivalent monetary receipt would be 
£22,500. 

5.3 To attempt to impose more stringent conditions which may not be considered 
reasonable in the event of an appeal. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Council Plan priorities: 

 Housing and Communities: 
o Creating balanced communities by: 

 delivering affordable homes 
o Encouraging a sustainable environment by: 

 ensuring that new development is sustainable and energy efficient 

6.2 Council Performance Indicators: 

 The number of completed permanent dwellings each quarter within South 
Lakeland 

 The number of new affordable homes for rent provided this quarter 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Whilst the Council will not benefit financially if the covenant is lifted there will be 
a ‘discounted sale’ benefit to pass on to approved local purchasers in the future. 
As a condition of giving consent, the Council will insist that the new dwelling is 
made available at a permanent discount for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local 
connection’ in perpetuity to be sold or let at 89.29% of market value. 

7.2 Alternatively the applicant could change her mind and apply to the Lands 
Tribunal to have the restrictive covenants set aside. If so there would be staff 

Page 4

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/measure-details?id=113
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/measure-details?id=113
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/measure-details?id=64


costs in defending the action taken and it is possible for the Tribunal to award 
costs against the Council if, for example, the Council’s demands were 
considered unreasonable. On the other hand it may be considered 
unreasonable for the Council not to take any action to secure affordable homes 
in accordance with Council Priorities. 

Human Resources 

7.3 There are no Human Resource implications with this proposal. 

Legal 

7.4 Land formerly owned by the Council on Council Housing Estates will typically 
contain conditions that only permit new building at the discretion of the Council 
and subject to appropriate conditions.  Where the Planning Authority has 
granted planning permission, the consent of the Council, therefore as the former 
owner will also be needed before any development can take place. 

7.5 Under established legal precedent the Council, as former landowner, is entitled 
to the equivalent of a 50% share in the perceived development ‘profit’. However 
in most cases if asked for its consent the Council will seek to impose ‘affordable 
housing’ conditions, as opposed to a monetary sum.  ‘Affordable housing’ 
conditions will typically mean that once the new dwelling has been built the 
Council will require for it or the adjoining existing dwelling to be sold at a 
‘discounted sale’ price and that same discount, expressed as a percentage of 
full market value, will be applied to all future disposals. 

7.6 The justification for the imposition of ‘affordable housing’ conditions by the 
Council in such cases in lieu of a monetary sum by the Council is that: 

 Affordable housing is one of the Council’s top priorities. 

 The Council acts as a Housing Authority for a district that has an identified 
and pressing housing need. 

 The land proposed to be developed is part of a former Council housing estate. 

7.7 It is therefore not considered unreasonable to ally consent to an obligation to 
provide affordable housing. 

7.8 If approved, the Council’s Legal Services Team will document the modification 
of the restrictive covenant facilitating the provision of a new property to be 
provided at a permanent discount for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local 
connection’. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.9 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No    

7.10 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 

 The impact of the effect on the environment was assessed in detail as part 
of the Development Control process and it is not considered necessary to 
give further consideration to this aspect as part of the subject decision, 
which is specifically concerned with the terms on a restrictive covenant 
should potentially be modified. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.11 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.12 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Not considered necessary for this DED report. 

Page 5



Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The applicant could change his 
mind and reject the proposed 
terms for the release of the 
restrictive covenant and instead 
opt to apply to the Lands Tribunal 
to have the covenant set aside 

The Council could incur 
staff costs in defending 
such a potential action and 
it is possible for the 
Tribunal to award costs 
against the Council if, for 
example, the Council’s 
demands were considered 
unreasonable. 

If the Tribunal decision 
went against the Council, 
established policy to 
impose affordable housing 
conditions, as opposed to 
seeking a monetary sum, 
where appropriate, would 
be difficult to implement in 
relation to future such 
cases. 

The Solicitor to the Council 
and Lambert Smith 
Hampton (the Council’s 
professional property 
advisors) remain of the 
view that established 
policy to impose 
‘discounted sale’ 
conditions, as opposed to 
seeking a monetary sum, 
in relation to applications to 
modify restrictive 
covenants against building 
is appropriate and 
justifiable. 

Contact Officers 

Sion Thomas – Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services, Direct Tel: 
(01539) 793192, Email: sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Matt Messenger – Senior Estates Surveyor / Valuer / Planning Viability Consultant, 
Lambert Smith Hampton, Email: mmessenger@lsh.co.uk 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Appendices Attached to Report 

Appendix Number Detail 

1 ‘Guidance Note: Consent to erect new dwelling(s) at a 
property formerly owned by the Council’.   

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 28.11.19 

Section 151 Officer 28.11.19 

Monitoring Officer 28.11.19 

SMT 05.12.19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 28.11.19 

Page 6

mailto:sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:matt.messenger@lsh.co.uk


Circulated to Date sent 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of 
the Senior Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested 
parties before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must 
be reported at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 7



 

Page 8



APPENDIX 1 
Purpose of Appendix 

The purpose of this Appendix is to highlight the Council’s existing policy for dealing with 
applications of this kind. 

 

GUIDANCE NOTE:  CONSENT TO ERECT NEW DWELLING(S) AT A PROPERTY 
FORMERLY OWNED BY THE COUNCIL 

LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON (LSH) (AGENT FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT 
COUNCIL) 

This guidance note is relevant where an application for planning permission has been made 
for residential development at an ex Council property. 

If the Planning Authority grants planning permission, the consent of the Council, as the former 
owner will also be needed before any development can take place.  Please do not assume 
that if planning permission is granted this additional consent is not required. The consent of 
the Council as former owner is a totally separate issue from planning consent. 

When Council property is sold typical sale documentation says that consent for any new 
building or structure is required. Such consent shall be at the discretion of the Council and 
subject to such reasonable conditions as the Council thinks fit. 

Whilst the Council if asked for its consent will not seek to be unreasonable it will seek to 
impose affordable housing conditions on such consent where appropriate.  The reasons for 
this being 

1. Affordable housing is one of the Council’s top priorities. 

2. The Council acts as a Housing Authority for a district that has an identified and pressing 
housing need. 

3. The land proposed to be developed was either originally acquired from the Council as 
part of a major government initiative to make owner occupied housing available at 
affordable prices and/or is part of a Council housing estate. 

4. It is therefore not considered unreasonable to ally consent to an obligation to provide 
affordable housing. 

It is not the Council’s intention in seeking to impose affordable housing conditions to remove 
all profit element from the proposal and during negotiations the Council will take into account 
the reasonable development costs and any diminution in value of the existing property. 

The process for obtaining Council consent will be as follows:- 
 

Property for sale (at a discount): 

1) Applicants to commission at their expense a valuation report featuring stipulated 
valuations relating to the proposed development.  This report to be produced by a local 
Chartered Surveyor acting independently of the parties and who can certify that the 
Council can rely on that valuation.  Anticipated building costs of the proposed new 
dwelling will also be required.  Further information on these aspects is contained in a 
related guidance note – ‘The valuation process used to calculate the discounted sale 
price to be applied to new dwelling(s) at a property formerly owned by the Council’ 

 

2) Agreement is reached between the Council and the applicant regarding an affordable 
sale price for the dwelling that will be less than market value. 

Page 9



Once consent is forthcoming: - 

(i) The new dwelling can be built and sold at an affordable discounted price and that 
same discount, expressed as a percentage of market value, will be applied to all future 
disposals. 

(ii) The purchaser to be approved by the Council’s Community & Housing Manager.  

The Council’s aim is to provide affordable housing by means of discounted sale. As an 
alternative to the above procedure the applicant may ask for the discounted sale restrictions to 
be applied to the existing (ex-Council) property instead of the new property thereby allowing 
the new property to be sold free of any restrictions imposed in return for the Council’s consent.  

Property for rent (at affordable rents) 

Where property for rent is to be provided the Council prefers a Registered Social Landlord 
(Housing Association) to be involved. Applicants are invited to discuss their individual case 
with the Principal Specialist (People). 

Further information 

For valuation issues and general information please contact: 

Lambert Smith Hampton, Suite 1, Cumbria Tourism Building, Windermere Road, Staveley, 
Kendal, LA8 9PL; Tel: 01539 760790; Email: kendal@lsh.co.uk 
 
For consent to occupy affordable housing please contact: 
Email: affordablehousing@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Page 10



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision:  

Thursday, 30 January 2020 

Application to modify a restrictive covenant on 
land at 24 Hall Park, Burneside  

 

Portfolio:  Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Sion Thomas – Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial 
Service 

Ward: Kendal Rural 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The modification of a restrictive covenant so that land at 24 Hall Park, Burneside 
can be developed for housing. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the Director of Customer and Commercial 
Services:- 

2.1.1 Authorises the modification of a restrictive covenant thereby allowing a 
new property to be provided, on previously owned Council land at 24 Hall 
Park, Burneside and being made available at a permanent discount for 
‘approved persons’ with a ‘local connection’; and 

2.1.2 Authorise the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist to enter 
into the necessary legal agreements. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The owner (‘the applicant’) of a former council house at 24 Hall Park, Burneside 
has requested the Council as former landowner to relax a restrictive covenant 
to permit the construction of a new 99m2 self-build two storey, three bedroomed 
attached dwelling situated on part of the original garden of the former Council 
house.   

3.2 When the Council sold the house to the applicant the sale documentation 
contained conditions that only permit new building at the discretion of the 
Council and subject to appropriate conditions.  

3.3 The Council granted planning consent for the proposed dwelling in April 2017 
(planning reference: SL/2017/0064). 

3.4 Established Council policy in relation to previous requests of this nature is 
attached as Appendix 1.  In essence if asked for its consent to modify such 

Page 11

Item No.2



restrictive covenants the Council will seek to impose affordable housing 
conditions, as opposed to seeking a monetary sum, where appropriate.  This 
will result in new or existing properties being provided at a permanent discount 
for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local connection’, in addition to those already 
provided through the Development Control process. 

3.5 The applicant has provisionally agreed that in return for the Council’s consent 
as former landowner (covenant relaxation), the new dwelling will be made 
available at a permanent discount (82.93% of market value) for ‘approved 
persons’ with a ‘local connection’, in accordance with the Council’s established 
‘Affordable Housing application process’. 

3.6 The applicant has agreed to meet the Council’s costs in documenting the 
relaxation of the covenant. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Deputy Leader and PH for Housing and Innovation has also been 
consulted and is in agreement with the proposals put forward.  

4.2 The Council’s Principal Specialist (People) supports the proposed decision that 
will enable a new property to be provided at a permanent discount for ‘approved 
persons’ with a ‘local connection’.  This is consistent with recent similar cases 
in the district. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 To lift the covenants unconditionally. This would not be in accordance with the 
statutory requirement to obtain best consideration in land transactions. 

5.2 To take a capital receipt instead of permanent price reductions. This would not 
achieve affordable housing.  In this instance the equivalent monetary receipt 
would be £35,000. 

5.3 To attempt to impose more stringent conditions which may not be considered 
reasonable in the event of an appeal. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Council Plan priorities: 

 Housing and Communities: 
o Creating balanced communities by: 

 delivering affordable homes 
 supporting Community Housing and self-build 

o Encouraging a sustainable environment by: 
 ensuring that new development is sustainable and energy efficient 

6.2 Council Performance Indicators: 

 The number of completed permanent dwellings each quarter within South 
Lakeland 

 The number of new affordable homes for rent provided this quarter 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Whilst the Council will not benefit financially if the covenant is lifted there will be 
a ‘discounted sale’ benefit to pass on to approved local purchasers in the future. 
As a condition of giving consent, the Council will insist that the new dwelling is 
made available at a permanent discount for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local 
connection’ in perpetuity to be sold or let at 82.93% of market value. 

Page 12

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/measure-details?id=113
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/measure-details?id=113
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/measure-details?id=64


7.2 Alternatively the applicant could change their mind and apply to the Lands 
Tribunal to have the restrictive covenants set aside. If so there would be staff 
costs in defending the action taken and it is possible for the Tribunal to award 
costs against the Council if, for example, the Council’s demands were 
considered unreasonable. On the other hand it may be considered 
unreasonable for the Council not to take any action to secure affordable homes 
in accordance with Council Priorities. 

Human Resources 

7.3 There are no Human Resource implications with this proposal.  

Legal 

7.4 Land formerly owned by the Council on Council Housing Estates will typically 
contain conditions that only permit new building at the discretion of the Council 
and subject to appropriate conditions.  Where the Planning Authority has 
granted planning permission, the consent of the Council, therefore as the former 
owner will also be needed before any development can take place. 

7.5 Under established legal precedent the Council, as former landowner, is entitled 
to the equivalent of a 50% share in the perceived development ‘profit’. However 
in most cases if asked for its consent the Council will seek to impose ‘affordable 
housing’ conditions, as opposed to a monetary sum.  ‘Affordable housing’ 
conditions will typically mean that once the new dwelling has been built the 
Council will require for it or the adjoining existing dwelling to be sold at a 
‘discounted sale’ price and that same discount, expressed as a percentage of 
full market value, will be applied to all future disposals. 

7.6 The justification for the imposition of ‘affordable housing’ conditions by the 
Council in such cases in lieu of a monetary sum by the Council is that: 

 Affordable housing is one of the Council’s top priorities. 

 The Council acts as a Housing Authority for a district that has an identified 
and pressing housing need. 

 The land proposed to be developed is part of a former Council housing estate. 

7.7 It is therefore not considered unreasonable to ally consent to an obligation to 
provide affordable housing. 

7.8 If approved, the Council’s Legal Services Team will document the modification 
of the restrictive covenant facilitating the provision of a new property to be 
provided at a permanent discount for ‘approved persons’ with a ‘local 
connection’. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.9 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No    

7.10 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 

 The impact of the effect on the environment was assessed in detail as part 
of the Development Control process and it is not considered necessary to 
give further consideration to this aspect as part of the subject decision, 
which is specifically concerned with the terms on a restrictive covenant 
should potentially be modified. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.11 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No. 

Page 13



7.12 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Not considered necessary for this DED report.  

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The applicant could change their 
mind and reject the proposed 
terms for the release of the 
restrictive covenant and instead 
opt to apply to the Lands Tribunal 
to have the covenant set aside 

The Council could incur 
staff costs in defending 
such a potential action and 
it is possible for the 
Tribunal to award costs 
against the Council if, for 
example, the Council’s 
demands were considered 
unreasonable. 

If the Tribunal decision 
went against the Council, 
established policy to 
impose affordable housing 
conditions, as opposed to 
seeking a monetary sum, 
where appropriate, would 
be difficult to implement in 
relation to future such 
cases. 

The Solicitor to the Council 
and Lambert Smith 
Hampton (the Council’s 
professional property 
advisors) remain of the 
view that established 
policy to impose 
‘discounted sale’ 
conditions, as opposed to 
seeking a monetary sum, 
in relation to applications to 
modify restrictive 
covenants against building 
is appropriate and 
justifiable. 

Contact Officers 

Sion Thomas – Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services, Direct Tel: 
(01539) 793192, Email: sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Matt Messenger – Senior Estates Surveyor / Valuer / Planning Viability Consultant, 
Lambert Smith Hampton, Email: mmessenger@lsh.co.uk 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Appendices Attached to Report 

Appendix Number Detail 

1 ‘Guidance Note: Consent to erect new dwelling(s) at a 
property formerly owned by the Council’.   

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 28.11.19 

Section 151 Officer 28.11.19 

Monitoring Officer 28.11.19 

SMT 05.12.19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Page 14

mailto:sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:matt.messenger@lsh.co.uk


Circulated to Date sent 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 28.11.19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of 
the Senior Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested 
parties before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must 
be reported at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Application to modify a restrictive covenant on land 
at 24 Hall Park, Burneside 

 

APPENDIX 1 
Purpose of Appendix 

The purpose of this Appendix is to highlight the Council’s existing policy for dealing with 
applications of this kind. 

 

GUIDANCE NOTE:  CONSENT TO ERECT NEW DWELLING(S) AT A PROPERTY 
FORMERLY OWNED BY THE COUNCIL 

LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON (LSH) (AGENT FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT 
COUNCIL) 

This guidance note is relevant where an application for planning permission has been made for 
residential development at an ex Council property. 

If the Planning Authority grants planning permission, the consent of the Council, as the former 
owner will also be needed before any development can take place.  Please do not assume that 
if planning permission is granted this additional consent is not required. The consent of the 
Council as former owner is a totally separate issue from planning consent. 

When Council property is sold typical sale documentation says that consent for any new building 
or structure is required. Such consent shall be at the discretion of the Council and subject to 
such reasonable conditions as the Council thinks fit. 

Whilst the Council if asked for its consent will not seek to be unreasonable it will seek to impose 
affordable housing conditions on such consent where appropriate.  The reasons for this being 

1. Affordable housing is one of the Council’s top priorities. 

2. The Council acts as a Housing Authority for a district that has an identified and pressing 
housing need. 

3. The land proposed to be developed was either originally acquired from the Council as 
part of a major government initiative to make owner occupied housing available at 
affordable prices and/or is part of a Council housing estate. 

4. It is therefore not considered unreasonable to ally consent to an obligation to provide 
affordable housing. 

It is not the Council’s intention in seeking to impose affordable housing conditions to remove all 
profit element from the proposal and during negotiations the Council will take into account the 
reasonable development costs and any diminution in value of the existing property. 

The process for obtaining Council consent will be as follows:- 
 

Property for sale (at a discount): 

1) Applicants to commission at their expense a valuation report featuring stipulated 
valuations relating to the proposed development.  This report to be produced by a local 
Chartered Surveyor acting independently of the parties and who can certify that the 
Council can rely on that valuation.  Anticipated building costs of the proposed new 
dwelling will also be required.  Further information on these aspects is contained in a 

Page 17



related guidance note – ‘The valuation process used to calculate the discounted sale 
price to be applied to new dwelling(s) at a property formerly owned by the Council’ 

 

2) Agreement is reached between the Council and the applicant regarding an affordable 
sale price for the dwelling that will be less than market value. 

Once consent is forthcoming: - 

(i) The new dwelling can be built and sold at an affordable discounted price and that same 
discount, expressed as a percentage of market value, will be applied to all future 
disposals. 

(ii) The purchaser to be approved by the Council’s Community & Housing Manager.  

The Council’s aim is to provide affordable housing by means of discounted sale. As an 
alternative to the above procedure the applicant may ask for the discounted sale restrictions to 
be applied to the existing (ex-Council) property instead of the new property thereby allowing the 
new property to be sold free of any restrictions imposed in return for the Council’s consent.  

Property for rent (at affordable rents) 

Where property for rent is to be provided the Council prefers a Registered Social Landlord 
(Housing Association) to be involved. Applicants are invited to discuss their individual case with 
the Principal Specialist (People). 

Further information 

For valuation issues and general information please contact: 

Lambert Smith Hampton, Suite 1, Cumbria Tourism Building, Windermere Road, Staveley, 
Kendal, LA8 9PL; Tel: 01539 760790; Email: kendal@lsh.co.uk 
 
For consent to occupy affordable housing please contact: 
Email: affordablehousing@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	1 Relaxation of restrictive covenant to 31 Cherry Tree Avenue, Ulverston
	Appendix 1 - Relexation of restrictive covenant to 31 Cherry Tree Avenue, Ulverston  - Appendix 1

	2 Application to relax restrictive covenant - 24 Hall Park, Burneside
	Application to relax restrictive covenant - 24 Hall Park, Burneside  - Appendix 1


